Tier 2 Canada Research Chair in Aging and Caregiving Policy (2002-2012) Dr. Janice Keefe

Department of Family Studies and Gerontology
Mount Saint Vincent University

~Summary of Research Experience~



Chaires de recherche du Canada



Table of Contents

Biography	3
redentials	3
Caregiving	4
Caregiver Assessment:	4
Double Duty Caregiving:	4
Other Caregiving Research:	4
Continuing Care	7
Nursing Home Quality of Life	7
lealth Human Resources	8
Home Support Workers	8
Projecting Need	8
Other Collaborative Research	. 11
Age-Friendly Environments	. 11
Seniors' Housing	. 12
Canadian Dementia Knowledge Translation Network (CDKTN)	. 12
Graduate Student Supervision and Mentorship	. 14
ppendix A: Refereed Abstracts and Provincial/Regional Presentations	

Dr. Janice Keefe, Ph.D. Canada Research Chair in Aging and Caregiving Policy (2002-2012)

Professor, Department of Family Studies and Gerontology Director, Nova Scotia Centre on Aging Lena Isabel Jodrey Chair in Gerontology Mount Saint Vincent University, Halifax, NS, B3M 2J6 Telephone: 902-457-6466; Fax 902-457-6226

Email: janice.keefe@msvu.ca Website: http://msvu.ca/mdc

f Janice Keefe – Maritime Data Centre



Biography

Janice Keefe, PhD is a Full Professor in the Department of Family Studies and Gerontology at Mount Saint Vincent University and holds appointments at Dalhousie University's Faculties of Medicine and Graduate Studies and UNB's School of Graduate Studies. In 2002, Dr. Keefe was selected as Mount Saint Vincent's first Canada Research Chair in Aging and Caregiving Policy and held the position for 10 years. Her research has received provincial, national and international recognition. In 2006, she was awarded the Lena Isabel Jodrey Chair in Gerontology and appointed Director, of the Nova Scotia Centre on Aging.

Dr. Keefe's primary research areas are caregiving, continuing care, and health human resources. She currently leads three research teams - one projecting human resources needed to care for the older Canadians over the next 30 years, another with caregivers of spouses with a cognitive impairment and a third which examines nursing home resident's quality of life. She is a Co-Investigator with the Canadian Dementia Knowledge Translation Network (CDKTN) and the Double Duty Nurses study. In the past decade, she has published more than 60 articles and technical reports.

Dr. Keefe teaches courses on aging and social policy in the Master of Arts and Undergraduate Program in the Department of Family Studies and Gerontology. She employs, supervises and mentors a number of graduate students pursuing research in aging-related topics.

This document summarizes the work of Dr. Janice Keefe during her time as Canada Research Chair in Aging and Caregiving Policy (2002-2012).

Credentials

Academic and Professional Credentials:

Doctor of Philosophy, 1992-97, Family Relations and Human Development, Dept. of Family Studies, University of Guelph

Master of Arts, 1984-86, Dept. of Sociology/Anthropology, University of Guelph Bachelor of Arts, 1981-84, Dept. of Sociology, University of Prince Edward Island

Keefe, J. Canada Research Chair in Aging and Caregiving Policy (2002-2012)

1980-81, General Arts, Carleton University

Academic Honours and Awards:

2012	Queen Elizabeth II Diamond Jubilee Medal Awarded by the Canadian Home Care Association for Contribution to Home Care
	Research in Canada
2012	Canadian Health Association's Marion Stephenson Award for Contribution to Continuing Care in Canada
2012	The Decade Club, Nova Scotia Health Research Foundation Award for Contribution to Health Research
2012	MSVU Nomination for Canada Research Chair Tier 1
2010	Award for Research Excellence, Mount Saint Vincent University
2008-2009	Gerontology Association of Nova Scotia Award for contribution to Gerontology in Nova Scotia
2006	Lena Isabel Jodrey Chair in Gerontology
2005	Novartis Pharma Prize for best family policy paper at the International Union for the Scientific Study of Population, Tours,
	France, July, 2005
2005	Honorary Co-Chair of Care for the Caregiver International Conference (2007)
2002	MSVU First Nominee for Canada Research Chair in Aging and Caregiving

Caregiving

Caregiver Assessment:

Dr. Keefe has dedicated more than 10 years of her career to the development and implementation of family caregiver assessment, with the development of The C.A.R.E. Tool. In the most recent project, the research team examined whether the timing of caregiver assessment makes a difference to persons who are caring for a partner with cognitive impairment

Double Duty Caregiving:

Dr. Keefe has worked with a team of researchers from Western University (lead by Catherine Ward Griffin) examining issues of double duty caregiving for nearly 10 years. The research team have examined the effects of maintaining a professional career in caring while providing unpaid care for family or friends. This research also looked at negotiating the boundaries between professional and familial care.

Other Caregiving Research:

Dr. Keefe has been involved in various caregiving-focused projects throughout her career. In the past 10 years, her collaborative work has focused on the economic and social contributions of caregivers, supportive social policy, and retirement issues related to caregiving.

Project Title (Year)	Principal Investigator	Funding Agency
1a. Caregiver Assessment		
Does timing of caregiver assessment make a difference: Evaluating the impact with older spousal caregivers of persons with cognitive impairment (2010-2013)	Dr. Janice Keefe	Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)
TEER for care: Technology-enabled education for recognizing caregivers'	Dr. Janice Keefe	Nova Scotia Health Research

aspirations, realities, and expectations (2010)		Foundations (NSHRF)
The C.A.R.E Tool: Examining the role of assessment in health promotion of spousal caregivers (2008)	Lucy Barylak	Public Health Agency of Canada (PHAC)
Examining the use of a caregiver assessment tool: Barriers, outcomes & policy implications (2005-2006)	Lucy Barylak	Health Canada
From research to practice: Assessing caregivers of persons with Alzheimer's disease, an evaluative study (2003-2006)	Dr. Janice Keefe	The Alzheimer Association
1b. Double Duty Caregiving		
Health professionals caring for elderly relatives: Investigating the health effects of double duty caregiving (2007-2011)	Catherine Ward-Griffin	Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)
Double duty caregiving: development of the role augmentation scale (2005)	Catherine Ward-Griffin	Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)
1c. Other Caregiving Research		
Background paper on caregiving in Nova Scotia (2008)	Dr. Janice Keefe	Nova Scotia Department of Health
When caregiving results in involuntary retirement: Well-being in the later years (2005-2008)	Dr. Áine Humble	Nova Scotia Health Research Foundation (NSHRF)
International comparison of compassionate care benefits (2005)	Dr. Janice Keefe	Human Resources and Skills Development Canada (HRSDC)
Hidden costs/invisible contributions: The marginalization of 'dependent adults' (2003-2008)	Janet Fast	Social Sciences and Humanities Research Council of Canada (SSHRC)
A healthy balance: A community alliance for health research on women's unpaid caregiving (2001-2007)	Amaratunga, C., Neumann, B., & Clow, B.	Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)

Refereed Publications

Humble, Á. M., **Keefe, J.,** & Auton, G. (2012). Caregivers' retirement congruency: A case for caregiver support. *International Journal of Aging & Human Development*, 74(2), 113-142. doi 10.2190/AG.74.2.b

Ward-Griffin, C., **Keefe, J.**, Martin-Matthews, A., Kerr, M., Brown, J.B. & Oudshoorn, A.(2009). The <u>Development and Validation of the Double Duty Caregiving Scale (DDCS)</u>. Canadian Journal of Nursing Research, 41(3), 108-128. http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/2009%20Development%20 and%20Validation%20of%20the%20Double%20Duty%20Caregiving%20Scale%20DDCS.pdf

Keefe, J., Fancey, P., Guberman, N., Barylak, L., & Nahmiash, D. (2008). Caregivers' aspirations, realities, and expectations: The C.A.R.E. Tool. *Journal of Applied Gerontology*, 27(3), 286-308. doi: 10.1177/0733464807312236



Keefe, J., & <u>Rajnovich</u>, B., (2007). To pay or not to pay: Examining underlying principles in the debate on financial support for family caregivers. *Canadian Journal on Aging*, 26(S1), S77-90. doi: 10.3138/cja.26.suppl1.77

- Rosenthal, C., Martin-Matthews, A., & **Keefe, J.** (2007). Care management and care provision for older relatives amongst employed informal care-givers. *Ageing & Society*, 27, 755-778. doi: 10/1017/S0144686X07005995
- Guberman, N., **Keefe, J.**, Barylak, L., & Fancey, P. (2007). "Not another form!!": Lessons for implementing caregiver assessment in health and social service agencies. *Health and Social Care in the Community,* 15(6), 577-587. doi.10.111/j.1365-2524.2007.00718.
- Guberman, N., Nicholas, E., Nolan, M., Rembicki, D., Lundh, U., & Keefe, J. (2003). Impacts on practitioners of using research-based carer assessment tools: Experiences from the UK, Canada and Sweden, with insights from Australia. Health & Social Care in the Community, 11(4), 345-355. doi: 10.1046/j.1365-2524.2003.00434.x
- **Keefe, J.**, & Fancey, P. (2002). Work and eldercare: Reciprocity between older mothers and their employed daughters. *Canadian Journal on Aging*, 21(2), 229-241. doi:10.1017/S0714980800001495

Technical Reports/Monographs

- **Keefe, J.**, & Fancey, P. (2008, July). *Financial support for caregivers: Lessons and challenges from a review of international policies.*Continuing Care Division, Nova Scotia Department of Health.
- Fancey, P., **Keefe, J.**, Guberman, N., & Barylak, L. (2008, March). The C.A.R.E. Tool: Examining the role of caregiver assessment in health promotion of older spousal caregivers. Public Health Agency of Canada.

Knowledge Transfer Products

- Ward-Griffin, C., Keefe, J., Kerr, M., Belle Brown, J., St. Amant, O. (2013). Supporting double duty caregivers: A policy brief.
- Keefe, J., Guberman, N., Fancey, P., & Barylak, L. (2008, March). Supporting Caregivers through Assessment. Identifying <u>Caregivers'</u>
 <u>Aspirations, Realities and Expectation: The C.A.R.E. Tool. [Brochure] Mount Saint Vincent University, Halifax, Nova Scotia.</u>

National Invited Keynote Presentations

- **Keefe, J.** (2012, November). Who Cares: Aging Boomers and Caregiving Policy in Canada As part of the Symposium of Building sustainable healthcare: Policies, perceptions and an aging population Canadian Science Policy Conference, Telus Spark Science Centre, Calgary.
- **Keefe, J.** (2012, April). Who cares?: Aging boomers and caregiver policy in Canada. Invited Big Thinking Lecture. Canadian Federation of Social Sciences and Humanities and the Canadian Health Services Research Foundation, Parliament Hill Restaurant, April 19.
- **Keefe, J.** (2009, April). Care of older Canadians: Policy challenges & emerging issues affecting caregivers. Invited Key speaker "Who will Care... When I'm 64" hosted by Institute for Public Policy, Montreal.
- **Keefe, J.** (2007, December). Why introduce policy to support caregivers in the workplace?: Evidence from the international community. Keynote presented at Bermuda Council on Ageing's Ageing at Work Conference, Bermuda.
- Keefe, J. (2007, November). A decade in caregiving policy. Invited keynote panelist at Canadian Association on Gerontology, Calgary, Alberta.
- **Keefe, J.** (2007, June). Work and eldercare policy: comparison of international labour policies. Platform Presentation International Caregiving Conference Caregiving Essential Partners in Care as Part of FICCDAT Toronto, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.** (2005, April). Caring for the caregiver: Examples of international policies that provide support. Alzheimer Society of Canada Annual National Conference, Regina, Saskatchewan.
- Keefe, J. (2005, January). Supporting caregivers in Canada. Minister of State for Families and Caregivers National Roundtable on Policy

- directions for Canadian caregivers with Tony Ianno, P.C., M.P., Ottawa, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.** (2004, December). *International experiences in policies for caregivers*. Policy Research Initiative Conference on Exploring New Approaches to Social Policy, Ottawa, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.** (2004, June). The C.A.R.E. Tool: An assessment of caregivers' aspirations, realties and expectations. Panelist at the 21st Annual McMaster Summer Institute on Gerontology Summer Lecture Series. Hamilton, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.** (2004, June). *Policy for Today and tomorrow*. 21st Annual McMaster Summer Institute on Gerontology Summer Lecture Series, Hamilton, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.** (2003, February). *Care of elderly persons in Canada: Key issues and policies*. Policy Forum on Unpaid Caregiving, Canadian Association for Community Living, Ottawa, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.** (2003, May). Recognizing the contributions of retired persons to Canadian society. Invited speaker, College and University Retiree Associations of Canada, Halifax, Nova Scotia.

Continuing Care

Nursing Home Quality of Life: Since 2009. Dr. Keefe has led the development of a research team to investigate issues of resident quality of

life in the continuing care system. It is hoped that this team will continue to collaborate beyond the 2014 conclusion of Care and Construction.

Over the past 2 years, Dr. Keefe, Dr. Kevin Kelloway and Ann McInnis have led a research project examining the models of care in Nova Scotia nursing homes, and assessing their impact on resident's quality of life. The development of the 23 member multidisciplinary, multi-sectorial research team and successful research proposal was supported by a grant from the Nova Scotia Health Research Foundation.



Project Title (Year)	Principal Investigator	Funding Agency
2a. Nursing Home Quality of Life		
Care and construction: Assessing differences in nursing home models of care on resident quality of life (2011-2014)	Dr. Janice Keefe, Dr. Kevin Kelloway & Ann McInnis (Principal Knowledge User)	Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR) & Nova Scotia Health Research Foundation (NSHRF)
Building an alliance for research on continuing care in Nova Scotia (2010-2011)	Dr. Janice Keefe	Nova Scotia Health Research Foundation (NSHRF)

Refereed Publications

Fancey, P., Keefe, J., Stadnyk, R., Gardiner, E., & Aubrecht, K. (2012). Understanding and assessing the impact of nursing home approach to care and physical design on residents and their families: A synthesis of the literature. Seniors Housing & Care Journal, 20(1), 99-114

National Invited Keynote Presentations

Keefe, J. (2010, October). Caring for an aging population: Role of continuing care in Atlantic Canada. Canadian Health Services Research Foundation (CHSRF), Halifax, Nova Scotia.

Health Human Resources

Home Support Workers:

This two phase research program examined issues related to the recruitment and retention of paraprofessional care workers to meet the needs of an aging population. Feedback was garnered from hundreds of stakeholders, during consultations in five provinces.

Projecting Need:

Earlier projects projecting needs focused on assessing the impact of cognitive impairment on the use of formal and informal networks by elderly Canadians and planning for Canadian human resource needs in chronic homecare for the elderly in 2031. Dr. Keefe's research evolved to include research examining caregiver supply and demand and public and private spending in home care services.

Project Title (Year)	Principal Investigator	Funding Agency	
3a. Home Support Workers			
Home support workers: HR strategies to meet future projected chronic care	Dr. Janice Keefe	Health Canada	
needs of older persons in Canada: Phase 2 Pan Canadian Consultations (2009-			
2010)			
Home support workers: HR strategies to meet future projected chronic care	Dr. Janice Keefe	Health Canada	
needs of older persons in Canada: Phase 1 (2009)			
3b. Projecting Need			
Public and private spending in home care services: The boomer challenge	Dr. Janice Keefe	Canadian Institutes of Health	
(2011-2012)		Research (CIHR)	
Caregiver supply and demand: Preparing for the future needs of older	Dr. Janice Keefe	Human Resources and Skills	
Canadians (2010-2012)		Development Canada (HRSDC)	
Planning for Canadian HR needs in chronic home care for the elderly:	Dr. Janice Keefe	Canadian Institutes of Health	
Projections to 2031 (2006-2009)		Research (CIHR)	
Planning for Canadian human resource needs in chronic home care for the	Dr. Janice Keefe	Nova Scotia Health Research	
elderly: Projections 2031 (2006)		Foundation (NSHRF)	
Assessing the impact of cognitive impairment on the use of formal and informal	Dr. Janice Keefe	Alzheimer Society of Canada	
networks by elderly Canadians (2005-2008)			

Refereed Publications

- <u>Lefrançois</u>, G., <u>Vézina</u>, S., <u>Keefe</u>, J., & Légaré, J. (in press, 2013). Trends and characteristics affecting disability among older Canadians living in private households. *Canadian Studies in Population*. Volume 40, issues 3 & 4, summer/fall 2013.
- <u>Dill</u>, D. M., **Keefe, J**., & <u>McGrath</u>, D. S. (2012). The influence of intrinsic and extrinsic job values on turnover intention among Continuing Care Assistants in Nova Scotia. *Home Health Care Services Quarterly*, 31(2), 111-129. doi: 10.1080/01621424.2012.681526

- Keefe, J., Knight, L., Martin-Matthews, A., & Légaré, J. (2011). Key issues in human resource planning for home support workers in Canada. WORK: A Journal of Prevention, Assessment, and Rehabilitation, 40(1), 21-28. doi:10.3233/WOR-2011-1203 http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/Key%20issues%20in%20human%20resource%20planning%20for%20home%20support%20workers%20in%20Canada.pdf
- Gaymu, J., Busque, M-A., Légaré, J., Décarie, Y., Vézina, S., & **Keefe, J**. (2010). What will the family composition of older persons be like tomorrow? A comparison of Canada and France. Canadian Journal on Aging, 29(1), 57-71. doi:10.1017/S0714980809990419 http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/2010%20What%20will%20the%20family%20composition%20of%20older%20persons%20be% 20like%20tomorrow(1).pdf
- Sims-Gould, J., Byrne, K., Craven, C., Martin-Matthews, A., & **Keefe, J.** (2010). Why I Became a Home Support Worker: Recruitment in the Home Health Sector. Home Health Care Services Quarterly, 29(4), 171-194. doi:10.1080/01621424.2010.534047 http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/2010%20Why%20I%20became%20a%20Home%20Support%20Worker.pdf
- Vézina, S., Légaré, J., Busque, M.-A., Décarie, Y., & **Keefe, J**. (2009, Spring). <u>L'environnement familial des Canadiens âgés de 75 ans et plus à l'horizon 2030</u>. *Enfances, Familles, Générations, 10*, 31-47. http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/2009%20The%20family%20environment%20of%20Canadians%20aged%2075%20and%20ov er%20in%202030.pdf
- Carrière, Y., **Keefe, J.**, Légaré, J., Lin, X., & Rowe, G. (2007). Population aging and immediate family composition: Implications for future home care services. *Genus*, *LXIIII* (1-2), 11-31
- Keefe, J., Légaré, J., & Carrière, Y. (2007). <u>Developing new strategies to support future caregivers of the aged in Canada: Projections of need and their policy implications</u>. *Canadian Public Policy*, 33(S1), S65-S80. http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/2007%20Developing%20new%20strategies%20to%20support%20future%20caregivers%20of%20the%20aged%20in%20Canada(1).pdf

Book Chapters

- Keefe, J., Légaré, J., Charbonneau, P., & Décarie, Y. (2012). Intergenerational support to older Canadians by their adult children: Implications for the future. In De Santis, G (Ed.), *The family, the market or the State?* (pp. 141-158). Intergenerational Economic Support under Pressure in Ageing Societies Series: International Studies in Population, Vol. 10. New York: Springer Publisher.
- Légaré, J., & Carrière, Y. (2010). Le soutien aux personnes âgées en perte d'autonomie :jusqu'où les Québécois vieillissants pourront-ils compter sur leur famille pour répondre à leurs besoins? In G-F. Dumont, A. Etchelecou, A. Parant, J-M. Robine, J-P. Sardon & B. Yvars (Eds.), Démographie et santé (pp. 77-85). CUDEP: Bordeaux, France. http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/2010%20Le%20soutien%20aux%20personnes%20%C3%A2g%C3%A9es%20en%20perte%20d'auton omie%20%20jusqu'o%C3%B9%20les%20Qu%C3%A9b%C3%A9cois%20vieillissants%20pourront-ils%20compter%20sur%20leur%20famille%20pour%20r%C3%A9pondre%20%C3%A0%20leurs%20besoins.pdf
- Carriére, Y., **Keefe**, J., & Livadiotakis, G. (2002). La viabilite de la institutionnalisation face aux changements sociode mographiques. In G. Perodeau & D. Côyte (Eds.), *Le virage ambulatoire: Defis et enjeux* (pp. 33-55). Quebec: Presses de L'Universite du Quebec.

<u>Technical Reports (External blind peer-reviewed)</u>

- MacDonald, B.J, **Keefe, J.**, Spin, P., Vézina, S., Décarie, Y., and Légaré, J (2012, July) Assessing gaps in receipt of needed support: Who will go without? Peer Reviewed report commissioned by the Policy Research Directorate of Human Resources and Skills Development Canada (HRSDC). External
- **Keefe, J.**, Knight, L., Vézina, S., MacDonald, B.J, and Légaré, J. (2012, May) *Caregiver Supply and Demand: Preparing for the Future Needs of Older Canadians:* Final Synthesis Paper Peer Reviewed report commissioned by the Policy Research Directorate of Human Resources and Skills Development Canada (HRSDC).
- Légaré, J., Keefe, J., Décarie, Y., & Vezina, S., (2012, January) Future care needs of older Canadians needing assistance: Who will do how much and for whom? Project 2 Final Report. Peer Reviewed report commissioned by the Policy Research Directorate of Human Resources and Skills Development Canada (HRSDC).
- **Keefe, J.** (2011, November). Supporting caregivers and caregiving in an aging Canada. Peer reviewed report. IRPP study 23. Montreal: Institute for Research on Public Policy. Retrieved from www.irpp.org/pubs/IRPPstudy/IRPP_Study_no23.pdf
- Keefe, J., Vezina, S., Lefrançois, G., Légaré, J., & Décarie, Y. (2011, June). Trends and characteristics affecting disability and the receipt of support by older Canadians living in private households. Project 1 Final Report. Peer Reviewed report commissioned by the Policy Research Directorate of Human Resources and Skills Development Canada (HRSDC).
- **Keefe, J.** (2011, July) *Reconciling the caregiver-care recipient dyad: Perspectives from research.* Paper commissioned by Human Resources and Skills Development Canada (HRSDC).
- Carrière, Y., **Keefe, J.**, Légaré, J., Lin, X., Rowe, G. Martel, L., & Rajbhandary, S. (2008, December). *Projecting the future availability of informal support and assessing its impact on home care services.* (Research Paper Demographic documents, Statistics Canada, Catalogue number 91F0015M No.009).

Technical Reports/Monographs

- **Keefe, J.,** Nickerson Rak, C., <u>Vezina, S.</u>, & Knight, L., (2012, April). Literature review to inform the inclusion of health and economic impacts of caregiving in micro-simulation models for neurological conditions in Canada. Paper commissioned by Public Health Agency of Canada.
- **Keefe, J.,** Martin-Matthews, A., Légaré, J. (2011, June). Home support workers: HR strategies to meet chronic care needs of Canadians. Final Report. Halifax, NS: MSVU.
 - http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/HSW%20HR%20Strategies%20Project_Final%20Report_June%202011.pdf
- **Keefe, J.**, MacDougall, R., Grignon, M., & Légaré, J. (2010, March). Systematic literature review of the costs and benefits of healthy aging. Prepared for the Public Health Agency of Canada.
- **Keefe, J.**, & McGrath, D. S. (2010, April). A comparative profile of human resource issues among home support workers and residential support workers who provide care to older adults. Technical report prepared for Health Human Resource Strategies Division, Health Canada.
- **Keefe, J.**, Légaré, J., & Martin-Matthews, A. (2009, September). Consultation on human resource strategies for home support worker recruitment and retention. Phase 2: Pan Canadian consultations. Background Document.
- **Keefe, J.**, Knight, L., Martin-Matthews, A., Sims-Gould, J., Byrne, K., & Légaré, J. (2009, May). *Home Support Workers: Human resource* strategies to meet future projected chronic care needs of older persons in Canada. Laying the groundwork. *Phase 1 Final Report*. Prepared for Health Canada. Mount Saint Vincent University, Halifax.

- **Keefe, J.**, Légaré, J., & Carrière, Y. (2004, March). *Projecting the future availability of informal support and assessing its impact on home care services, Part I: Demographic projections*. Health Canada. Halifax: Mount Saint Vincent University.
- **Keefe, J.**, Légaré J., & Carrière, Y. (2004, March). *Projecting the future availability of informal support and assessing its impact on home care services, Part II: Policy implications*. Health Canada. Halifax: Mount Saint Vincent University.

Knowledge Transfer Products

- Sims-Gould, J., Byrne, K., Craven, C., Martin-Matthews, A., & **Keefe, J**. (2010, May). Why I became a Home Support Worker: Recruitment in the home health sector. [Brochure] Mount Saint Vincent University, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Keefe, J., Martin-Matthews, A., & Légaré, J. (2009, June). Home Support Workers: HR Strategies. [Brochure] Mount Saint Vincent University, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Keefe, J. & Légaré, J. (2008, Fall). Projecting the Future Amount of Home Support Needed by Older Canadians. [Brochure] Mount Saint Vincent University, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Keefe, J. & Légaré, J. (2004, March). Projecting the Availability of Informal Support and its Impact on Chronic Home Care Services: Policy Implications and Alternatives. [Brochure] Mount Saint Vincent University, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Keefe, J., Carrière, Y., & Légaré, J. (2004, March). Projecting the Availability of Informal Support and its Impact on Chronic Home Care Services. [Brochure] Mount Saint Vincent University, Halifax, Nova Scotia.

National Invited Keynote Presentations

- Keefe, J., <u>Décarie</u>, Y., <u>Charbonneau</u>, P., & Légaré, J. (2009, May). *Projecting family support needed to assist older Canadians living in the community, 2006-2031.* Paper presented at the London School of Economics and Political Science, EAPs/MAP2030 Workshop on the Future of Family Support for Older People, London, UK.
- **Keefe, J.,** & Légaré, J. (2006, December). *Approaches to improving projection models of chronic home care needs for elderly Canadians*. 2nd Annual Symposium of the Population, Work & Family Policy Research Collaboration, Gatineau, Québec.
- **Keefe, J.**, Légaré, J. & Carrière, Y. (2006, March). Developing new strategies to support future caregivers of the aged in Canada: Projections of need and their policy implications. Symposium of the Population, Work & Family Policy Research Collaboration, Ottawa, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.** (2005, April). Projecting the amount of human resources needed to provide chronic home care to Canada's elderly, 2001 2031. Policy Research Initiative, Ottawa, Ontario.
- Keefe, J. (2004, June). Caregivers of today and tomorrow: Profiling Canadian caregivers and projecting their future availability. National Consultation on "Respite as an Outcome for Family Caregivers" hosted by VON Canada as part of VOICE in Health Policy Initiative, Ottawa, Ontario.

Other Collaborative Research

Age-Friendly Environments:

Dr. Keefe began work with the Age-Friendly initiative in 2006. A large portion of Nova Scotia's seniors live in rural and remote areas so the imperative exists to understand how more supportive environments can be developed and maintained for an aging population. This body of research has resulted in numerous reports, including a practical guide to stimulate advocacy, community development and policy change to make rural communities in Nova Scotia more age-friendly.

Seniors' Housing:

Dr. Keefe worked in collaboration with a large team of Atlantic Canadian researchers to examine the housing and support needs, both existing and emerging, of an aging population. In 2010-2011, the team developed a report highlighting policy recommendations on how these housing needs could be better met in the future.

Canadian Dementia Knowledge Translation Network (CDKTN):

The CDKTN is a national network for knowledge translation (KT) and exchange (KE) of research in Alzheimer's disease and dementia. Dr. Keefe continues to lead the Knowledge Translation for Policy Development branch of the network.

Project Title (Year)	Principal Investigator	Funding Agency	
4a. Age-Friendly Environments			
Age-friendly communities Nova Scotia implementation (2011-2013)	Pamela Fancey	Nova Scotia Department of Seniors	
Age-friendly rural/remote communities initiative (2007-2008)	Elaine Gallagher	Public Health Agency of Canada (PHAC)	
World Health Organization global age friendly cities project & age friendly		Nova Scotia Seniors' Secretariat and	
rural/remote communities initiative (2006-2007)		Halifax Regional Municipality	
4b. Senior's Housing			
Projecting the housing needs of aging Atlantic Canadians (2005-2010)	Dr. Donald Shiner	Social Sciences and Humanities	
		Research Council of Canada (SSHRC)	
4c. Canadian Dementia Knowledge Translation Network (CDKTN)			
A network for translation of research in Alzheimer Disease and Dementia –	Dr. Kenneth Rockwood	Canadian Institutes of Health	
Canadian Dementia Knowledge Translation Network (CDKTN) (2008-2013)		Research (CIHR)	
Epidemiology of cognitive impairment in older Canadians (2003-2006)	Dr. Kenneth Rockwood	Canadian Institutes of Health	
		Research (CIHR)	
4d. Rural/Urban Research			
Caring contexts of rural seniors (2002-2006)		Veterans Affairs Canada	
Net loss population settlement patterns and maintenance of rural health status:		Canadian Institutes of Health	
A case study in Atlantic Canada (2003)		Research (CIHR)	

Refereed Publications

- Weeks, L. E., & **Keefe, J.**, MacDonald, D. J. (2012). Factors predicting relocation among older adults. *Journal of Housing for the Elderly, 26*(4). 355-371. doi: 10.1080/02763893.2011.653099
- Martin-Matthews, A., Tamblyn, R., **Keefe, J.,** & Gillis, M. (2009). Bridging policy and research on aging in Canada: Recognizing an anniversary, realizing an opportunity. *Canadian Journal on Aging, 28*(2), 185-193. doi: 10.1017/S0714980809090217
- Downe-Wamboldt, B., Butler, L., Melanson, P., Coulter, L., Singleton, J., **Keefe, J.**, & Bell, D. (2007). The effects and expense of augmenting usual cancer clinic care with telephone problem-solving counseling. *Cancer Nursing*, 30(6), 441-453.

- Butler, L., Downe-Wamboldt, B., Melanson, P., Coulter, L., **Keefe, J.**, Singleton, J., & Bell, D. (2006). Prevalence, correlates and costs of patients with poor adjustment to mixed cancers. *Cancer Nursing*, 29(1), 9-16.
- Side, K., & **Keefe, J**. (2005). The role of unpaid work in maintaining individual and community health in Atlantic Canada: A case study. *Canadian Woman Studies*, 24(1), 129-137.
- Side, K., & Keefe, J. (2004). Health regionalization and rurality in Nova Scotia. Canadian Review of Social Policy, 54, 108-116.
- Keefe, J. (2004). Family ties and support in later life. Transition, 34(3), 3-7.
- **Keefe, J.**, & Fancey, P. (2002). Work and eldercare: Reciprocity between older mothers and their employed daughters. *Canadian Journal on Aging*, 21(2), 229-241. doi:10.1017/S0714980800001495

Book Chapters

- Side, K., & **Keefe, J**. (2011). The role of unpaid work in maintaining individual and community health in Atlantic Canada: A case study. In A. Miles (Ed.), *Women in a globalizing world: Equality, development, peace and diversity*. Toronto, ON: Inanna Publications and Education Inc. (reprint by *Canadian Woman Studies*)
- Keefe, J., Glendinning, C., & Fancey, P. (2008). <u>Financial payments for family carers: Policy approaches</u>
 and debates. In A. Martin-Matthews & J. Philips (Eds.), *Ageing at the intersection of work and home life: Blurring the boundaries* (pp. 185-206). New York: Lawrence Eribaum.

 <a href="http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/2008%20Financial%20Payments%20for%20family%20carers.%20Policy%20approaches%20a
 - http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/2008%20Financial%20Payments%20for%20family%20carers.%20Policy%20approaches%20and%20debates.pdf
- Eales, J., **Keefe, J.**, & Keating, N. (2008). Age-friendly rural communities. In N. Keating (Ed.), *Rural ageing: A good place to grow old?* (pp. 109-120). Bristol, UK: Policy Press.

Technical Reports/Monographs

- Keefe, J., & Hattie, B. (2008). Age-friendly rural and remote communities initiative. Guysborough county.
 - <u>Summary Report</u>. Prepared for the Nova Scotia Department of Seniors and other jurisdictions within the Federal/Provincial/Territorial Ministers Responsible for Seniors Forum and the Public Health Agency of Canada.
 - http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/AgeFriendlyRuralGuysborough_2008(1).pdf
- Keefe, J., & Hattie, B. (2007). *Age-friendly cities project: Halifax Site. Summary Report*. Part of World Health Organization's initiative. Halifax: Province of Nova Scotia.
 - http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/AgeFriendlyCities 2007(1).pdf
- Eales, J., Keating, N., Rozanova, J., Bardick, A., Swindle, J., Bowles, R., **Keefe, J.**, & Dobbs, B. (2006). *Caring contexts of rural seniors A case study of diversity among older adults in rural communities*. Ottawa: Veterans Affairs Canada.
- Dobbs, B., Swindle, J., Keating, N., Eales, J., & **Keefe, J**. (2004, December). *Caring context of rural seniors Phase II Technical Report*. Veterans Affairs Canada. Edmonton: University of Alberta
- Keating, N., Chapman, S.A., Eales, J., **Keefe, J**., & Dobbs, B. (2004, January). *Caring contexts of rural seniors: Background and rationale for the program of research*. Veterans Affairs Canada. Edmonton: University of Alberta.
- **Keefe, J.**, Fancey, P., Keating, N., Frederick, J., Eales, J., & Dobbs, B. (2004, January). *Caring contexts of rural seniors Phase I Technical Report*. Veterans Affairs Canada. Edmonton: University of Alberta.

Keefe, J., & Side, K. (2003, September). *Net loss population settlement patterns and maintenance of rural health status: A case study in Atlantic Canada*. Strategic Initiative in Rural Health: Diagnostic and Integrative Projects. Halifax: Mount Saint Vincent University.

National Invited Keynote Presentations

Keefe, J., & Hattie, B. (2009, June). The Age Friendly Checklist: A framework to assist older adults in planning for retirement. 30th Annual National Conference of the Retirement Planning Association of Canada, Halifax, Nova Scotia.

Graduate Student Supervision and Mentorship

During Dr. Keefe's 10 years as Canada Research Chair, she supervised or co-supervised 13 graduate students and served as a committee member for 6 graduate students. Dr. Keefe supported her students in publishing and presenting their work at local, and national conferences. As well as serving as an academic mentor for many students, Dr. Keefe's research lab, the Maritime Data Centre for Aging Research and Policy Analysis, employed more than 50 graduate and undergraduate students during her term as Canada Research Chair.



Graduate Thesis Supervisor:

- 2011- M. O'Hara, Title TBD. Masters of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor) (In Progress)
- 2011- S. Nadeau, An exploration of individual and environmental factors influencing long term care residents' quality of social life.

 Master of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor) (In Progress)
- 2011-12 T. Brown Assessing the physical environment in adult day programs for persons with dementia. Masters of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor). **AWARD FOR MSVU's BEST THESIS** 2012
- 2010- M. Leslie, *Identifying the learning needs of family/friend caregivers of older adults through an online assessment instrument*. Ph.D. Student in Education, UNB (Co-thesis Advisor) (In Progress)
- 2010- S. Landry, Masters of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor) (In Progress)
- 2009-11 G. Lefrancois, *Tendances de l'incapacité chez les aînés au Canada et caractéristiques sociodémographiques associées, 1994-2005.* Master of Science in Demography, Université de Montreal. (Thesis Co-advisor) (Completed March, 2011)
- 2005-09 D. Dill, *Recruitment of Home Support Workers in Nova Scotia,* Master of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor) (Completed October, 2009) **MSVU SENATA AWARD OF DISTINCTION** 2009
- 2005-07 L. Engel, Factors predicting support utilization by older adults, Master of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor) (Completed September, 2007)
- 2005-06 L. Tay, Financial compensation initiatives for caregivers: Changes over time and the drivers of change in four countries, Masters of Applied Health Services Research, Dalhousie University (Thesis Advisor) (Completed December, 2005)
- 2004-07 S. McEvenue, *Palliative care in long-term care: Innovative approaches to service delivery*, Master of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor) (Completed September, 2007) **AWARD FOR MSVU's BEST THESIS** 2007
- 2004-05 G. Hawkins, *Patterns and predictors of home care utilization: Analyzing changes over a 5 year period (1996-2001)*, Master of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor) (Completed October, 2005)

- 2003-04 J. Colepaugh, Lessons to be learned: A gender-based analysis of direct compensation policies for informal caregivers in Australia, Germany, and the United Kingdom Master of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor) (Completed October, 2004)
- 2002-04 M. Manning, *The mechanics of policy change: Home care histories in three provinces, 1985-2000*, Master of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor) (Completed October, 2004) **AWARD FOR MSVU's BEST THESIS** 2004
- 2002-03 S. Elliott, Factors influencing the recruitment and retention of continuing care assistants in Nova Scotia, Master of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor) (Completed October, 2003)
- 2002-03 K. Hemeon, The experience of anticipatory grief and loss in spousal caregivers of persons with Alzheimer's Disease, Master of Arts in Family Studies and Gerontology (Thesis Advisor) (Completed October, 2003)

Appendix A: Refereed Abstracts and Provincial/Regional Presentations

1. Caregiving

1a. Caregiver Assessment

Refereed Abstracts:

- Fancey, P., Gubermann, N., Keefe, J., & Barylak, L. (2011, June). Health Care Professionals Accessing Technology-Enabled Education on Caregiving. Presented at FICCDAT. Toronto, Ontario.
- Guberman, N., Barylak, L., Fancey, P., & Keefe, J. (2006, June). Validation of the Caregiver Risk Screen: A screening tool developed to prioritize intervention for caregivers. Poster presented at the International Federation on Ageing, Copenhagen, Denmark.
- Guberman, N., Fancey, P., Keefe, J., & Barylak, L. (2005, October). Caregiver Assessment: Does it change overall caregiver satisfaction with practitioners and services? Paper presented at the 34th Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting. Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Fancey, P., Keefe, J., Guberman, N., & Barylak, L. (2005, June). Caregiver assessment: Caregivers' views of whether it makes a difference. Paper presented at the 18th International Association of Gerontology World Congress of Gerontology, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil.
- Keefe, J., Fancey, P., Guberman, N., & Barylak, L. (2005, April). Assessment makes a difference: Recognizing the distinct issues affecting caregivers of the cognitively impaired. Poster presented at the Alzheimer Society of Canada Annual National Conference, Regina, Saskatchewan.
- Keefe, J., Fancey, P., Guberman, N., Nahmiash, D., & Barylak, L. (2002, October). Caregiver assessment: Justifying caregivers role and needs. Paper presented at the 31st Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Montreal, Quebec.
- Guberman, N., Fancey, P., Keefe, J., Barylak, L., & Nahmiash, D. (2002, October). Benefits and limitations of a comprehensive specific caregiver assessment. Paper presented at the 31st Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Montreal, Ouebec.
- Keefe, J., Fancey, P., Guberman, N., Nahmiash, D., & Barylak, L. (2002, October). A Canadian caregiver assessment tool. Poster presented at the 3rd International Conference on Family Care: Empowerment through Innovation, Washington, District of Columbia, USA.
- Keefe, J., Fancey, P., Guberman, N., Nahmiash, D., & Barylak, L. (2002, May). Evaluating the utility of an assessment tool for family caregivers. Paper presented at the Canadian Evaluation Society Conference: Evidence for Better Decision-Making, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Fancey, P., Keefe, J., Guberman, N., Nahmiash, D., & Barylak, L. (2002, April). A Canadian caregiver assessment tool. Paper presented at the Valencia Forum: Researchers, Educators and Providers Contribution to the 2nd World Assembly on Ageing, Valencia, Spain.

- Keefe, J. (2012, May). The C.A.R.E. Tool: An evidence-informed tool for home care professionals. Paper presentation at Northwood's 13th Annual Spring Conference & Pre-conference Research Symposium. Holiday Inn Harbourview, Dartmouth, Nova Scotia.
- Keefe, J., Fancey, P., Guberman, N., Barylak, L., & Nahmiash, D. (2008). Caregivers' Aspirations, Realities, and Expectations: The Care Tool. Journal of Applied Gerontology, 27(3), 286-308. doi: 10.1177/0733464807312236 http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/2008%20Caregivers%20Aspirations%20Realities%20and%20Expectations.pdf
- Keefe, J. (2005, April). Many faces of a family caregiver- The C.A.R.E. Tool: Recognizing Caregivers' aspirations, realities and expectations. Canada Research Chair in Aging and Caregiving Policy (2002-2012)

Prince Edward Island Gerontological Nurses Association 2nd Annual Educational Workshop, Cornwall, Prince Edward Island.

1b. Double Duty Caregiving

Refereed Abstracts:

- Ward-Griffin, C., DeForge, R., **Keefe, J.**, Brown, J.B., <u>St-Amand, O</u>. (2012, November). *Double duty caregiving: A knowledge translation initiative*. Presentation at the Gerontological Society of America's 65th Annual Scientific Meeting, San Diego, CA. November 14-18, 2012.
- Ward-Griffin, C., **Keefe, J.**, Martin-Matthews, A., Brown, J., Kerr, M., & St-Amant, O. (2011, June). Negotiating the boundaries between professional and familial care work. Paper presentation at Festival of International Conferences on Caregiving, Disability, Aging and Technology (FICCDAT), Toronto, Ontario.
- Ward-Griffin, C., **Keefe, J.**, Martin-Matthews, A., Brown, J., Kerr, M., & <u>St-Amant O.</u> (2010, December) *Examining the Health Effects of Double Duty Caregiving: A Constructivist Grounded Theory.* Presented at the 39th Annual Scientific and Educational Meeting of the Canadian Association of Gerontology: Spotlight on Integration of Knowledge and Practice, Montreal, Quebec.
- Ward-Griffin, C., **Keefe, J.**, Martin-Matthews, A., Belle-Brown, J., Kerr, M., & <u>St-Amant</u>, O. (September, 2010). *Re-thinking care work for double duty caregivers: Using constructivist grounded theory to examine the health effects of DDC.* Philosophizing Social Justice in Nursing: The 14th International Philosophy of Nursing Conference, Vancouver, British Columbia.
- Ward-Griffin, C., **Keefe, J.**, Martin-Matthews, A., Kerr, M., Belle-Brown, J., & <u>St-Amant</u>, O. (July, 2010). *Health professional caring for elderly relatives: Examining the health effects of double duty caregiving*. Presented at 5th International Carers Conference, New Frontiers in Caring: 2010 and beyond, Leeds, UK.
- Ward-Griffin, C., **Keefe, J.**, Martin-Matthews, A., Kerr, M., Belle-Brown, J., & <u>St-Amant</u>, O. (2010, July). *Health professionals caring for elderly relatives: Promoting the health of double duty caregivers*. Presented at the 20th International Union for Health Promotion and Education (IUHPE) World Conference on Health Promotion, Geneva, Switzerland.
- Ward-Griffin, C., **Keefe, J.**, Martin-Matthews, A., Kerr, M., Belle-Brown, J., & Oudshoorn, A. (2009, June). *Providing care at home and at work: Investigating the impact of double duty caregiving on the health of nurses*. Presented at the 9th International Family Nursing Conference, Reykjavik, Iceland.
- Ward-Griffin, C., **Keefe, J.**, Martin-Matthews, A., Kerr, M., & Brown, J. (2007, June). *Development and validation of the double-duty caregiving scale*. Paper presented at International Caregiving Conference as part of the Festival of International Conferences on Caregiving, Disability Aging and Technology, Toronto, Ontario.
- Ward-Griffin, C., **Keefe, J.**, Martin-Matthews, A., Kerr, M., & Brown, J. (2007, April). *Caring at home and at work: Investigating the impact of double-duty caregiving on the health of caregivers*. Paper presented at the World Health Promotion Conference, Vancouver, British Columbia.
- Ward-Griffin, C., **Keefe, J.**, Martin-Matthews, A., Kerr, M., & Brown, J. (2006, July). *Nurses caring for aging relatives: Blurring the professional-personal boundaries*. Paper presented at the 17th International Nursing Research Congress, Montreal, Quebec.
- Ward-Griffin, C., **Keefe, J.**, Martin-Matthews, A., Kerr, M., & Brown, J. (2006, April). *Negotiating personal-professional boundaries: Caring for family members*. Paper presented at the Ontario Gerontology Association, Toronto, Ontario.

- **Keefe, J.** (2011, May). Double duty caregivers: Nurses who navigate personal and professional boundaries when caring for older family members. Nova Scotia Nursing Network, Halifax.
- **Keefe, J.** (2011, May). Double duty caregivers: Nurses who navigate personal and professional boundaries when caring for older family members. Telehealth Nursing Education broadcast from College of Registered Nurses of Nova Scotia, Halifax.
- **Keefe, J.** (2011, January). Double duty caregivers: Nurses who navigate personal and professional boundaries when caring for older family members. Grand Rounds Geriatric Medicine, Queen Elizabeth Health Science Centre, Halifax, Nova Scotia.

1c. Other Caregiving Research

- Keefe, J. (2010, December). Financially Supporting Caregivers: Learnings from the International Community and a Canadian Example.

 Presented at the 39th Annual Scientific and Educational Meeting of the Canadian Association on Gerontology: Spotlight on Integration of Knowledge and Practice, Montreal, Quebec.
- **Keefe, J.** (2010, May). Care of older Canadians: Policy challenges affecting caregivers. Presentation at the International Council for Canadian Studies, Montreal, Quebec.
- **Keefe, J.** (2009, April). Care of older Canadians: Policy challenges and emerging issues affecting caregivers. Paper presented at the Institute for Research on Public Policy (IRPP) Conference "When I'm 64..." Defining Caregiving Policy for an Aging Canada, Montreal, Quebec.
- Humble, Á. M., & **Keefe, J.** (2009, October). *Retiring early to provide care: The decision making process and perceptions of choice.* Poster presented at the 15th Qualitative Health Research Conference, Vancouver, British Columbia.
- **Keefe, J.**, Menec, V., & Gallagher, E. (2008, September). Similarities and Differences across three Canadian Cities and their Stakeholders. Presented at International Federation on Ageing Montreal, Quebec.
- **Keefe, J.** (2008, September). *Policies to Support Family Caregivers: Lessons from the International Countries on Work & Eldercare Policy.*Presented at International Federation on Aging Montreal, Quebec.
- Humble, Á. M., **Keefe, J.**, & Auton, G.M. (2007, December). *Caregivers and retirement congruency: Findings from a mixed method study*. Paper presented at the 3rd Annual Symposium of the Population, Work and Family Policy Research Collaboration, Ottawa, Ontario.
- Humble, Á. M., Auton, G., & **Keefe, J.** (2007, November). Wanting to stay employed but not able: Retirement congruency in caregivers. Paper presented at the annual scientific and educational meeting of the Canadian Association on Gerontology, Calgary, Alberta.
- Neumann, B., Medjuck, S., **Keefe, J.**, Kirkland, S., & Fancey, P. (2007, June). *Rx for caregivers: Addressing policy and program.* Symposia Presentation at International Caregiving Conference as part of the Festival of International Conferences on Caregiving, Disability Aging and Technology, Toronto, Ontario.
- Humble, Á. M., Auton, G., **Keefe, J.**, & Byrne, J. (2007, June). *Caregivers and retirement congruency.* Poster presented at Caregivers: Essential Partners in Care conference, part of the Festival of International Conferences on Caregiving, Disability, Aging, and Technology. Toronto, Ontario.
- Medjuck, S., **Keefe, J.**, Fancey, J., & Kirkland, S. (2007, June). *Caregiver satisfaction and stress*. Paper presented at International Caregiving Conference as part of the Festival of International Conferences on Caregiving, Disability Aging and Technology, Toronto, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.** (2007, June). Caregiving and employment: A healthy balance. Paper presented at International Caregiving Conference as part of the Festival of International Conferences on Caregiving, Disability Aging and Technology, Toronto, Ontario. (presented in absentia)

- **Keefe, J.**, & Fancey, P. (2005, June). *International perspectives: Examining public policies that support employed caregivers*. Paper presented at the 18th International Association of Gerontology World Congress of Gerontology, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil.
- Manning, M., & **Keefe, J.** (2005, October). *The mechanics of policy change: Home care histories in three provinces, 1985-2000.* Paper presented at the 34th Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Fancey, P., Keefe, J., Tay, L., & White, S. (2005, October). Public policies for employed caregivers: Uncovering the motivating forces of their development. Paper presented at the 34th Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Educational and Scientific Meeting, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- **Keefe, J.**, Rajnovich, B., & Daly, T. (2005, October). Examining the principles underlying international financial support policies for family caregivers. Paper presented at the 34th Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Educational and Scientific Meeting, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- **Keefe, J.**, Hawkins, G., & Manning, M. (2002, November). The shifting landscape of home care policy in Canada over the past 15 years and its effects on caregivers. Paper presented at the Canadian Home Care Association Conference, Vancouver, British Columbia.
- **Keefe, J.** (2002, October). The shifting landscape in home care and its effect on family caregivers. Paper presented at the 31st Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Montreal, Quebec.
- Kicenjuk, D., **Keefe, J.**, Colman, R., Bruhm, G., & Atwell, Y. (2002, July). *A healthy balance: Care-giving is a relationship*. Paper presented at the International Conference on Personal Relationships, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- **Keefe, J.** (2002, April). Reciprocal relationships: Predictors of giving and receiving assistance among older Canadians. Paper presented at the Valencia Forum: Researchers, Educators and Providers Contribution to the 2nd World Assembly on Ageing, Valencia, Spain.

- **Keefe, J.** (2011, June). Enhancing quality of life of older persons and their caregivers: Linking research to policy and practice. Presentation to the Mount Saint Vincent University Community.
- Humble, Á. M., Salmon, N., & **Keefe, J.** (2009, May). *Retiring to give care: Caregivers' decisions and preferences*. Paper presented at the Atlantic Caregiver Expo, Halifax, NS. (presented in absentia)
- **Keefe, J.** (2007, May). Weaving the tapestry of caring communities: Interdisciplinary perspectives on contributions, care, and vulnerability. Hidden Costs/Invisible Contributions, Edmonton, Alberta
- Keefe, J., & Rajnovich, B., (2007). To pay or not to pay: Examining underlying principles in the debate on financial support for family caregivers. Canadian Journal on Aging, 26(S1), S77-90. doi: 10.3138/cja.26.suppl1.77 http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/2007%20To%20pay%20or%20not%20to%20pay.pdf
- **Keefe, J.** (2006, November). Work and elder care policy: Is Canada leading or lagging compared to other nations? Keynote address at a Roundtable on Research in Work and Eldercare, Centre for Families, Work & Well-being, University of Guelph, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.** (2006, November). Comparing Canada's compassionate care policy: Leading or lagging other nations. Community Health and Epidemiology, Dalhousie University, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Fancey, P., Hawkins, G., **Keefe, J**., & Neuman, B. (2005, October). *Examining caregiving in Nova Scotia: Results from the 2005 survey*. Paper presented at the 34th Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Educational and Scientific Meeting, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- **Keefe, J.** (2005, September). Research to policy: Strategies that make a difference. A Health and Well-Being domain of the Atlantic Metropolis Centre symposium on Pathways and Gateways from Research to Policy, Dartmouth, Nova Scotia.

- <u>Tay</u>, L., Fancey, P., **Keefe, J.**, & <u>White</u>, S. (2005, June). *Financial compensation for caregivers of dependent adults: Changing views and approaches in the United Kingdom, Germany, Sweden and Canada*. Paper presentation at the Hidden Costs/Invisible Contributions Symposium, Trent University, Peterborough, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.** (2005, May). Understanding supportiveness of rural communities in Canada and choosing policies to support their caregivers. Presented at the Humber Valley Caregiver Day, Newfoundland.
- **Keefe, J.** (2004, November). Stakeholder consultation on financial compensation initiatives for family caregivers of dependent adults. Workshop organized for national level policy makers and stakeholder organizations, Ottawa, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.** (2003, May). How research informs the policy process. Invited speaker, Workshop on Building Policy Frameworks to Support Older Parents Caring for Adult Sons/Daughters with Disabilities, Mount Saint Vincent University, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- **Keefe, J.** (2003, May). Back to the future: Where is continuing care policy heading? Invited speaker, Continuing Care Association of Nova Scotia (CCANS) Annual Conference, Dartmouth, Nova Scotia.

2. Continuing Care

2a. Care and Construction:

- **Keefe, J.**, Kelloway, K., Earl, M., & Hirdes, J. (2012, November). *Three perspectives on nursing home quality of life in NS: Results from a province wide survey of nursing home residents, family members and staff.* Paper presentation at the Nova Scotia Centre on Aging Conference, Our Future is Aging: Current Research on Knowledge, Practice and Policy. Halifax, Nova Scotia. November 21-23.
- **Keefe, J.** (2011, October). CAG Divisional Symposium Social Policy and Practice: New Directions in Nursing Home Care: Learnings from the Canadian Context. Discussant at the 40th Annual Scientific and Educational Meeting & Pan Am Congress, Ottawa, Ontario.
- Fancey, P., MacDougall, R., Hattie, B., & **Keefe, J**. (2010, December). <u>Building a Research Alliance: The Nova Scotia Continuing Care Sector Experience</u>. Poster presented at the 39th Annual Scientific and Educational Meeting of the Canadian Association of Gerontology: Spotlight on Integration of Knowledge and Practice, Montreal, Quebec. http://www.msvu.ca/site/media/msvu/FINAL_Building%20a%20Research%20Alliance_CAG%20Poster.pdf
- **Keefe, J.**, Stadnyk, R., White, E., & Fancey, P. (2009, June). Building research capacity for examining the impact of developments on quality of life for nursing home residents and their families. Background document. Halifax: Nova Scotia Centre on Aging, Mount Saint Vincent University, Halifax.
- **Keefe, J.**, Fancey, P., & Bonia, K. (2008, April). *A profile of Nova Scotia caregivers*. Continuing Care Division, Nova Scotia Department of Health.
- Fancey, P., Hattie, B., **Keefe, J.** (2007). A provincial adult day program for older Nova Scotians. Continuing Care Branch, Nova Scotia Department of Health.
- **Keefe, J.** (2002, December). Building capacity in continuing care Bridging researchers & decision makers in the Atlantic Region Workshop report. Halifax: Mount Saint Vincent University.
- Manning, M., Keefe, J., Hawkins, G., & MacLellan, M. (2002, October). *Trends, issues & policies: Continuing care in the Atlantic Region*. Continuing Care Workshop, 'Bridging Researchers & Decision Makers in the Atlantic Region', Halifax, Nova Scotia.

- Parent, K., Anderson, M., Keefe, J., & MacLellan, M. (2002, February). *Technical report 2: Seniors. Analysis of interfaces along the continuum of care for seniors*. FPT Committee on Health Services, Health Canada. Victoria: Hollander Analytical Inc.
- Anderson, M., Parent, K., MacLellan, M., & **Keefe, J**. (2002, February). *Technical report 3: Adults with physical disabilities. Analysis of interfaces along the continuum of care for persons with disabilities.* FPT Committee on Health Services, Health Canada. Victoria: Hollander Analytical Inc.

Provincial and Regional Presentations:

- Keefe, J. (2012, May). Research in continuing care: What we know, what we don't, what we need to know. Keynote address, Pre-Conference Research Symposium: Promoting Health and Wellness in Continuing Care through Research at Northwood's 13th Annual Spring Conference & Pre-conference Research Symposium. Holiday Inn Harbourview, Dartmouth, Nova Scotia.
- Keefe, J. (2011, November). The necessity of applied research in continuing care. Continuing Care Council Forum, Dartmouth, Nova Scotia.
- **Keefe, J.** (2002, November). Shifting times in home and continuing care and its impact on family caregivers. Invited keynote speaker, East Prince Health regional annual meeting. Summerside, Prince Edward Island.

3. Health and Human Resources

3a. Home Support Workers

Refereed Abstracts:

- **Keefe, J.** (2010, July). Strategies for recruiting & retaining paid care providers. Presented at 5th International Carers Conference, New Frontiers in Caring: 2010 and Beyond, Leeds, UK.
- **Keefe, J.** (2010, November). Report back and moving forward: Pan Canadian consultations on human resources in home care. Presented at an interactive workshop at the Canadian Home Care Association National Conference, Home Care Summit 'Imagine the Experience', Quebec City, Quebec.
- Keefe, J., Martin-Matthews, A., & Légaré, J. (2010, March). Keeping care in community care: Strategies for recruitment and retention of home support workers. Presented at Lost in Knowledge Translation? Innovations in Health Human Resources Policy, UBC Center for Health Services and Policy Research, Vancouver, British Columbia.
- **Keefe, J.** (2009, November). Discussant for *Direct care work across settings: Complexities, cultures and contexts in Canada, Israel and the USA.* 62nd Annual Scientific Meeting, Gerontological Society of America, Atlanta, Georgia, USA.
- Knight, L., **Keefe, J.**, Légaré, J., Martin-Matthews, A., & Sims-Gould, J. (2009, October). *Human resource strategies to address recruitment and retention issues in formal home support.* Presented at the Canadian Association on Gerontology 38th Annual Meeting, Winnipeg, Manitoba.

- **Keefe, J.** (2011, June). Home support workers Understanding issues to inform strategies for recruitment and retention. Moving Research from Paper to Practice Symposium. Northwood, Christina & Hedley Ivany Place, Bedford, Nova Scotia
- **Keefe, J.** (2009, October). A key member of the home care team Understanding the issues among community health/home support workers. Presentation for Canadian Home Care Association, Banff, Alberta.

3b. Projecting Need

- Binette Charbonneau, A., Keefe, J., & Vézina, S. (2012, November). Changes in the use of government-subsidized home care by older Canadians who need assistance. Poster presentation at the Nova Scotia Centre on Aging Conference, Our Future is Aging: Current Research on Knowledge, Practice and Policy. Halifax, Nova Scotia. November 21-23.
- Keefe, J., Vézina, S., Légaré, J & Décarie, Y., (2012, November). Projecting older Canadians? Home support needs: Future scenarios of disability and social support. Presentation at the Gerontological Society of America's 65th Annual Scientific Meeting, San Diego, CA. November 14-18, 2012.
- <u>Vézina, S.</u>, **Keefe, J.**, Décarie, Y., & Légaré, J. (2012, November). Assessing the impact of increased demand for chronic care and decreased supply of caregivers: We need a plan for the future. Poster presentation at the Nova Scotia Centre on Aging Conference, Our Future is Aging: Current Research on Knowledge, Practice and Policy. Halifax, Nova Scotia. November 21-23.
- <u>Décarie, Y.</u>, Légaré, J., **Keefe, J.** & <u>Vézina, S.</u> (2012, May). Future care needs of older Canadians needing assistance: Who will do how much? and what if..? Presentation at the International Federation on Aging, Prague, May 28-June 2, 2012.
- Binette Charbonneau, A., & **Keefe, J.** (2012, October). *Patterns and predictors of subsidized home care utilization in Ontario*. Presentation at the Canadian Association on Gerontology 41st Annual Scientific and Educational Meeting, Aging in a Changing World, Vancouver, British Columbia. October 18-20.
- Spin, P., <u>Vezina, S.</u>, & Keefe J. (2012, June). Older Canadians who go without: Predictors of unmet need for activities of daily living. Presented at the European Population Aging Conference, Stockholm, Sweden. June 14-18.
- Légaré, J., <u>Lefrancois</u>, G., <u>Keefe</u>, J., & <u>Vézina</u>, S. (2011, September). *Trends in old-age disability among Canadians living in private households,* 1994-95 to 2000-01. Poster presented at the European Population Conference, Vienna, Austria.
- Keefe, J., <u>Vézina</u>, S., <u>Décarie</u>, Y., & Légaré, J. (2011, April). *Projecting human resources needs to deliver chronic home care in Canada:*Changes in the organization of care. Presentation at the International Association of Gerontology and Geriatrics (IAGG VII) European Regional Symposium on the Organization of Home Care, Bologna, Italy.
- Keefe, J., Charbonneau, P., Décarie, Y., & Légaré, J. (2010, December). Intergenerational Support to Older Canadians: Implications for the Future. Presented at the 39th Annual Scientific and Educational Meeting of the Canadian Association of Gerontology: Spotlight on Integration of Knowledge and Practice, Montreal, Quebec.
- Keefe, J., Charbonneau, P., Décarie, Y., & Légaré, J. (2010, June). Determinants of intergenerational exchange among older Canadians and their adult children: Implications for their future. Presentation at Association Internationale des Demographes de Langue Francaise (AIDELF) General Conference, Geneva, Switzerland.
- Keefe, J., & Légaré, J. (2010, May). Planning for Canadian human resource needs in chronic home care: Projected demand for formal and informal support 2006-2031. Presentation at the International Council for Canadian Studies, Montreal, Quebec.
- Keefe, J., Charbonneau, P., Lefrancois, G., Décarie, Y., & Légaré, J. (2010, May). Projecting
- the support needed in the community to assist older Canadians: Where should you invest your business? Presentation at the Silver Economy Summit, Halifax, Nova Scotia.

- Keefe, J., Charbonneau, P., Décarie, Y., & Légaré, J. (2010, April). Defining disability: Recognizing the heterogeneity of care receivers and its consequences for projecting future care needs of Canadians. Presented at the Statistics Canada Socio-economic Conference, Gatineau, Quebec.
- <u>Décarie</u>, Y., Légaré, J., <u>Charbonneau</u>, P., **Keefe, J.,** Gaymu, J., & the FELICIE team. (2010, April). Future older people in the most vulnerable situation in terms of health, family situation and living arrangement: A comparison of Canada with some European countries.

 Presented at the Statistics Canada Socio-economic Conference, Gatineau, Quebec.
- <u>Décarie</u>, Y., Légaré, J., <u>Charbonneau</u>, P., **Keefe, J.**, Gaymu, J., & the FELICIE team. (2009, June). *Using dynamic microsimulation models to face the policy issue of caring for the most vulnerable elderly: A comparison of Canada with some European countries*. Paper presented at the 2nd General Conference of the International Microsimulation Association, Ottawa, Ontario.
- <u>Décarie</u>, Y., **Keefe, J**., <u>Vézina</u>, S., <u>Busque</u>, M-A., & Légaré, J. (2009, October). *Using GSS 2002 to project the home care needs of Canadian elderly with a long term health problem, 2006-2031*. Paper presented at the Conference on Health over the Life Course, University of Western Ontario, London, Ontario.
- Keefe, J., Charbonneau, P., Décarie, Y., & Légaré, J. (2009, October). Defining disability: Recognizing the heterogeneity of care receivers and its consequences for projecting future care needs of Canadians. Poster presented at the XXVI International Union for the Scientific Study of Population (IUSSP) International Population Conference, Marrakech, Morocco.
- Légaré, J., <u>Décarie</u>, Y., <u>Charbonneau</u>, P. **Keefe, J.,** Gaymu, J., & l'équipe Félicie. (2009, September). Les futures personnes âgées les plus vulnerables en terms de santé et de mode de vie: une comparison entre le Canada et quelques pays européens. Poster presented at the XXVI IUSSP International Population Conference, Marrakech, Morocco.
- <u>Décarie</u>, Y., Légaré, J., <u>Charbonneau</u>, P., **Keefe, J.**, Gaymu, J., & the FELICIE team. (2009, July). Future older people in the most vulnerable situation in terms of health, family situation and living arrangement: A comparison of Canada with some European countries. Poster presented at the 19th IAGG World Congress of Gerontology and Geriatrics, Paris, France
- Légaré, J., <u>Charbonneau</u>, P., <u>Décarie</u>, Y., & **Keefe, J.** (2009, July). Heterogeneity of disability and its consequences for projecting future care needs of older Canadians. Poster presented at the 19th IAGG World Congress of Gerontology and Geriatrics, Paris, France.
- <u>Charbonneau</u>, P., **Keefe, J.**, <u>Vézina</u>, S., <u>Busque</u>, M-A., <u>Décarie</u>, Y., & Légaré, J. (2009, May). *Planification des ressources humaines impliquées dans les soins et services à domicile: conséquences des besoins projetés sur les politiques, 2001-2031. Paper presented at the 77th Congress of the Association francophone pour le savoir (ACFAS), Ottawa, Ontario.*
- <u>Busque</u>, M-A., Légaré, J., Gaymu, J., <u>Vézina</u>, S., <u>Décarie</u>, Y. et **Keefe, J**. (2009, May), *La transformation des réseaux familiaux des personnes âgées d'ici 25 ans : comparaison Canada-Europe*. Paper presented at the 77th Congress of the ACFAS, Ottawa, Ontario.
- Keefe, J., Vézina, S., Busque, M-A., Décarie, Y., Charbonneau, P., & Légaré, J. (2008, December). Planning for Canadian human resources needs in chronic home care: Policy implications of projected needs 2006-2031. Paper presented at the 4th Annual Symposium of the Population, Work and Family Policy Research Collaboration, Gatineau, Quebec.
- Légaré, J., Gaymu, J., <u>Busque</u>, M-A., <u>Vézina</u>, S., <u>Décarie</u>, Y. & **Keefe, J.** (2008, December). The changing family networks of elderly in the next 25 years: How Europe is different from Canada. Presented at the 4th Annual Symposium of the Population, Work and Family Policy Research Collaboration, Gatineau, Quebec.
- Légaré, J., <u>Keefe, J., Décarie</u>, Y., <u>Vézina</u>, Y., <u>Busque</u>, M-A., & <u>Charbonneau</u>, P. (2008, October). *Projecting caregivers needed to support older Canadians with chronic home care needs, 2006-2031*. Presentation at the Human Resources and Skills Development Canada (HRSDC) Conference on Caregiving, Ottawa, Ontario.

- Légaré, J., <u>Décarie</u>, Y., <u>Keefe, J.</u>, <u>Vézina</u>, S., <u>Busque</u>, M-A., & <u>Charbonneau</u>, P. (2008, September). *Projecting human resources needs in chronic home care* 2006-2031. Paper presented at the Canadian Institute for Health Information (CIHI) Data Users Conference, Ottawa, Ontario.
- Keefe, J., Vézina, S., Busque, M-A., Décarie, Y., Légaré, J., & Charbonneau, P. (2008, July). Planning for Canadian human resource needs in chronic home care: Policy implications of projected needs 2001-2031. Paper presented at the European Population Conference, Barcelona, Spain.
- Légaré, J., Gaymu, J., <u>Busque</u>, M-A., <u>Vézina</u>, S., <u>Décarie</u>, Y., & **Keefe, J.** (2008, July). The changing family networks of the elderly in the next 25 years: How Europe is different from Canada. Paper presented at the European Population Conference, Barcelona, Spain.
- Keefe, J., Vézina, S., Busque, M-A., & Légaré, J. (2008, June). Who receives care? Informal and formal sources of support among older Canadians. Paper presented at the Canadian Population Society Annual Meeting, Vancouver, British Columbia
- Keefe, J., Vézina, S., Busque, M-A., Décarie, Y., & Légaré, J. (2007, December). Who will care for Canadian elderly in 2017... and beyond? Paper presented at the 3rd Annual Symposium of the Population, Work and Family Policy Research Collaboration, Ottawa, Ontario.
- Légaré J., <u>Vézina</u>, S., <u>Busque</u>, M., <u>Décarie</u>, Y., & **Keefe, J.** (2007, November). *L'environnement familial des Canadiens âgés de 75 ans et plus à l'horizon 2029.* Paper presented at the 9^e Symposium Québécois de la recherche sur la famille, Trois-Rivières, Québec.
- Légaré, J., **Keefe, J.**, & Carrière, Y. (2007, May). Le soutien aux personnes âgées en perted'autonomie : jusqu'où les Québécois vieillissants pourront-ils compter sur leur famille pour répondre à leurs besoins? Presentation at the 14th National Conference on Demography and Health, Bordeaux, France.
- Légaré, J., **Keefe, J.**, & Carrière Y. (2006, May). Long-term care for Quebec baby boomers and their future family networks. Paper presented at the 8th Global Conference of the International Federation of Ageing, Copenhagen, Denmark.
- **Keefe, J.**, & Légaré, J. (2006, December). *Approaches to improving projection models of chronic home care needs for elderly Canadians*. Paper presented at the 2nd Annual Symposium of the Population, Work and Family Policy Research Collaboration, Gatineau, Quebec.
- Légaré, J., **Keefe, J**., & Carrière Y. (2006, October). Le soutien aux personnes âgées en perte d'autonomie: jusqu'où les baby-boomers pourront-ils compter sur leur famille pour répondre à leurs besoins? Paper presented at the Congrès international francophone de gérontologie et gériatrie, Québec.
- **Keefe, J.**, Légaré, J., & Carrière, Y. (2005, July). Developing new strategies to support future caregivers of the aged in Canada: Projections of need and their policy implications. Paper presented at the XXV IUSSP International Population Conference, Tours, France.
- Keefe, J., Carrière, Y., & Légaré, J. (2004, October). *Projecting costs of caregiver policies 2001-2031*. Paper presented at the Canadian Home Care Association Conference, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Carrière, Y., Légaré J., & **Keefe, J**. (2004, October). Futurs réseaux de recours aux services de maintien à domicile pour personnes âgées dépendantes. Paper presented at the 17th du Centre Jacques Cartier, Orford, Quebec.
- **Keefe, J.**, Carrière, Y., Légaré, J., Hawkins, G., & Manning, M. (2003, December). *Projecting the future need of formal home care services in Canada 2001-2031: Policy issues associated with changing family forms*. Paper presented at the Canadian Home Care Association 2003 Conference: From Policy to Practice...The Home Care Challenge, Toronto, Ontario.
- Carriére, Y., Légaré, J., Keefe, J., Rowe, G., Martel, L., Xiaofen, L., & Rajbhandary, S. (2003, May). Micro-simulations and the effect of changing family structure on the needs for formal home care services. Paper presented at Canadian Population Society (CPS) 2003 Annual Meeting, Congress of the Humanities and Social Sciences, Halifax, Nova Scotia.

- Légaré, J., Carriére, Y., & **Keefe, J**. (2002, October). *Trends in the use of formal and informal support networks in Canada,* 1986-1996. Paper presented at the 31st Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Montreal, Quebec.
- Carrière, Y., Légaré, J., Keefe, J., Martel, L., Rowe, G., & Lin, X. (2004, October). The impact of changing family structure on the need for home care services in an aging society: The Canadian case. Poster presented at the Canadian Home Care Association Conference, Halifax, Nova Scotia.

Provincial and Regional Presentations:

- Légaré, J., <u>Décarie</u>, Y., <u>Keefe</u>, J., <u>Vézina</u>, S., <u>Busque</u>, M-A., & <u>Charbonneau</u>. P. (2008, October). *Vision of home care: Meeting the needs of an aging population*. Paper presented at the CHCA Home Care Summit, St. Andrews-by-the-Sea, New Brunswick.
- **Keefe, J.** (2008, September). *Caregivers' realities: Assessing Today's Needs Planning for tomorrow*. Geriatric Rounds, QEII Health Sciences Centre, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- **Keefe, J.** (2007, January). Caring for frail older people in Canada: Projections of need and their policy implications. Geriatric Rounds, Health Care Centre for the Elderly, QE II Hospital, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Keefe, J., Carrière, Y. & Légaré, J. (2004, October) *Projecting informal support in Canada from 2001-2031 and its effect on chronic continuing care services*. Okanagan University College Centre for Population and Health Services Research, Okanagan, British Columbia.
- Carrière, Y., & **Keefe, J**. (2004, March). *Projecting informal support in Canada & implications for Ontario*. Ministry of Health Policy Forum, Cosponsored by the Divisions of Research and Planning, Community Care Access and Human Resources, Toronto, Ontario.
- Carrière, Y., & **Keefe, J**. (2004, March). *Projecting the availability of informal support and its impact on chronic home care services: The BC case*. Ministry of Health Policy Rounds, Victoria, British Columbia.
- Carrière, Y., & **Keefe, J**. (2004, March). *Projecting the availability of informal support and its impact on chronic home care services*. Simon Fraser University Gerontology Research Centre Spring Lecture Series, Vancouver, British Columbia.
- **Keefe, J.**, Carrière, Y., & Légaré, J. (2004, March). *Projecting the availability of informal support and its impact on chronic home care services:*An Atlantic case. Nova Scotia Department of Health, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- **Keefe, J.** (2003, November). *Projecting the future need for caregivers of older persons and their policy implications.* Saint Mary's University Psychology Colloquium, Halifax, Nova Scotia.

4. Other Collaborative Research

4a. Age-Friendly

Refereed Abstracts:

Fancey, P., Campbell, J., Hattie, B., & **Keefe, J.** (2012, November). *Building age-friendly communities from the community up: The Nova Scotia experience*. Paper presentation at the Nova Scotia Centre on Aging Conference, Our Future is Aging: Current Research on Knowledge, Practice and Policy. Halifax, Nova Scotia. November 21-23.

4d. Rural/Urban Research

- Swindle, J., Dobbs, B., Keating, N., Eales, J., & **Keefe, J**. (2006, October). Support to Canadian rural seniors: The influence of individual, network, and community characteristics. Paper presented at the 35th Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Educational and Scientific Meeting, Québec City, Québec.
- Dobbs, B.M., Eales, J., Keating, N., Swindle, J., & **Keefe, J**. (2005, November). Supportiveness to seniors in rural Canada: Results from a national survey. Paper presented at the Gerontological Society of America Conference, Orleans, Florida, USA.
- Eales, J., Keating, N., Rozanova, J., **Keefe, J.**, & Dobbs, B. (2005, October). *Older adults' community engagement and community connections:*Lessons learned from three rural communities. Paper presented at the 34th Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Educational and Scientific Meeting, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Keating, N., Swindle, J., Dobbs, B., Eales, J., & **Keefe, J**. (2005, June). 'At home' in rural Canada: Social networks and support of rural seniors. Paper presented at the 18th International Association of Gerontology World Congress of Gerontology, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil.
- Eales, J., Dobbs, B., Keating, N., & **Keefe, J.** (2005, February). *Community supportiveness to seniors living in rural Canada.* Paper presented to the Prairie Advisory Council, Edmonton, Alberta.
- Keating, N., **Keefe, J.**, Fancey, P., Frederick, J., & Dobbs, B. (2004, October). *Rural community supportiveness to seniors: Characteristics that make a difference.* Paper presented at the 33rd Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Victoria, British Columbia.
- **Keefe, J.**, Fancey, P., Side, K. & Hemeon, K. (2004, October). *Gender differences in unpaid assistance to seniors in rural Canada: The Case of Atlantic Canada*. Paper presented at the 33rd Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Victoria, British Columbia.
- Side, K., & **Keefe, J**. (2004, October). *Understanding regional strengths, accounting for diversity: Maintaining community health in a case study community in rural Nova Scotia.* Paper presented at the 5th National Canadian Rural Health Research Society Conference & 4th International Rural Nursing Congress Conference, Sudbury, Ontario.
- **Keefe, J.**, Keating, N., Fancey, P., Frederick, J., Dobbs, B. & Chapman, S.A. (2003, October). *Is rural Canada a good place to grow old? Distinguishing characteristics among rural communities.* Paper presented at the 32nd Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Toronto, Ontario.
- Fancey, P., Frederick, J., Eales, J., Keefe, J., Keeting, N., & Dobbs, B. (2003, October). *Community contexts of Canada's rural seniors: Profiling diversity*. Poster presented at the 32nd Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Toronto, Ontario.
- Side, K., & **Keefe, J**. (2003, October). *Net loss population settlement patterns and maintenance of rural health status: A case study in Atlantic Canada.* Paper presented at the Institute of Agricultural Rural and Environmental Health Fifth International Symposium: Future of Rural Peoples, Saskatoon, Saskatchewan.

- **Keefe, J.**, & Side, K. (2004, January). *Population change and rural health in Atlantic Canada*. Media launch, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- **Keefe, J.**, & Side, K. (2003, November). *Population change and rural health in Atlantic Canada.* Community Presentation of Research Findings, Parrsboro, Nova Scotia.
- **Keefe, J.** (2003, November). *Older adults in rural Atlantic Canada*. Invited speaker at the Quarterly Meeting of the Voluntary Planning Health and Social Well-Being, Halifax, Nova Scotia.

- **Keefe, J.,** & Side, K. (2003, June). *Net loss population settlement patterns & maintenance of rural health status: A case study in Atlantic Canada.* Cumberland Community Health Board, Parrsboro, Nova Scotia.
- **Keefe, J.**, & Side, K. (2003, April). Net loss population settlement patterns & maintenance of rural health status: A case study in Atlantic Canada. Lions Club, Parrsboro, Nova Scotia.

5. Graduate Student Supervision and Mentorship

- Brown, T., & **Keefe, J.** (2012, November). Assessing the physical environment of adult day programs for persons with dementia. Poster presentation at the Nova Scotia Centre on Aging Conference, Our Future is Aging: Current Research on Knowledge, Practice and Policy. Halifax, Nova Scotia. November 21-23.
- Brown, T., & Keefe, J. (2012, October). Assessing the physical environment in adult day programs. Poster presentation at the Canadian Association on Gerontology 41st Annual Scientific and Educational Meeting, Aging in a Changing World, Vancouver, British Columbia. October 18-20.
- Smith, H., & **Keefe, J.** (2012, November). Sibling relationships across the life-course: Baby boomers caring for an older brother or sister.

 Poster presentation at the Nova Scotia Centre on Aging Conference, Our Future is Aging: Current Research on Knowledge, Practice and Policy. Halifax, Nova Scotia. November 21-23.
- McEvenue, S., & **Keefe, J**. (2007, April). *Palliative care in long-term care: Quality approaches to service delivery*. Poster presented at the Old Age in a New Age Conference, Saint John, New Brunswick.
- Hawkins, G., & **Keefe, J**. (2005, October). *An examination of changes in home care use in Eastern Canada.* Paper presented at the 34th Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Educational and Scientific Meeting, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- McEvenue, S., & Keefe, J. (2005, October). *Palliative care in long-term care: High quality approaches to service delivery*. Poster presented at the 34th Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Educational and Scientific Meeting, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- Hawkins, G., & Keefe, J. (2004, October). Patterns and predictors of home care utilization in Eastern Canada. Paper presented at the Canadian Home Care Association Conference, Halifax, Nova Scotia.
- White, S., Rajnovich, B., Fancey, P., Keefe, J., & Colepaugh J. (2004, October). Compensating family caregivers: An overview of policies from ten countries. Poster presented at the 33rd Annual Scientific and Education Meeting of the Canadian Association on Gerontology, Victoria, British Columbia.
- Fancey, P., Keefe, J., Colepaugh, J., Rajnovich, B., & White, S. (2004, October). A critical assessment of financial compensation policies for family caregivers of dependent adults. Paper presented at the 33rd Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Victoria, British Columbia.
- Colepaugh, J., & Keefe, J. (2004, May). Lessons learned: A gender-based policy analysis of direct compensation policies available in Australia, Germany, and the United Kingdom. Paper presented at the Canadian Association for Health Services and Policy Research conference, Montreal, Quebec.
- Hawkins, G., Manning, M., **Keefe, J.**, & MacLellan, M. (2003, October). *Comparisons of continuing care policy in the Atlantic provinces*. Student poster presented at the 32nd Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology, Education and Scientific Meeting, Toronto, Ontario.
- Elliot, S., & **Keefe, J**. (2002, October). *Factors impacting recruitment and retention in continuing care*. Poster presented at the 31st Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Montreal, Quebec.

Hemeon, A. K., & **Keefe, J**. (2002, October). The experience of anticipatory grief and loss in spousal caregivers of persons with Alzheimer's disease. Poster presented at the 31st Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Montreal, Quebec.

4e. Other Research

- Martin-Matthews, A., Tamblyn, R., **Keefe, J.,** & Gillis, M. (2009). Bridging policy and research on aging in Canada: Recognizing an anniversary, realizing an opportunity. *Canadian Journal on Aging, 28*(2), 185-193. doi: 10.1017/S0714980809090217
- Chapman, S.A., Hirst, S., **Keefe, J**., & Votova, K. (2002, October). *Investing in the future: The CAG division student mentorship program*. Workshop presentation at the 31st Annual Canadian Association on Gerontology Education and Scientific Meeting, Montreal, Quebec.
- **Keefe, J.** (2002, March). Lessons to be learned from longitudinal studies on aging about measuring the functional and cognitive abilities of older persons. Paper presented at the Invitational Meeting on Developing a Canadian Longitudinal Study of Aging, Hull, Quebec.